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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Welcome to the

          3  City Council Finance Committee. I'm David Weprin,

          4  Chair of the Committee. On the far left is Michael

          5  Nelson, who is Chair of the Subcommittee on Revenue

          6  Forecasting of the Finance Committee, and next to me

          7  is our Majority Leader and a member of the Finance

          8  Committee, Joel Rivera, and on my immediate right is

          9  Lisa Neary from the Finance staff, and we're being

         10  joined by our Majority Whip Council Member Leroy

         11  Comrie, another member of the Finance Committee.

         12                 We have a number of items on our

         13  agenda.

         14                 First, we will consider two local

         15  laws authorizing budget increases for two BIDs.

         16  Because the BID laws require that most hearings on

         17  Local Laws changing the governing documents of BIDs

         18  only be conducted after a hearing date is publicly

         19  set on May 14th, we set today as the public hearing

         20  date to take up these budget increases for the

         21  MetroTech area and Brighton Beach BIDs.

         22                 The statute authorizing the

         23  establishment of BIDs and amendments to the plans by

         24  which they operate, provides that local laws

         25  increasing a BID's operating budget can be adopted
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          2  if the Council and the Committee make the following

          3  findings:

          4                 1) That it is in the public interest

          5  to authorize the increase.

          6                 2) That the tax and debt limits set

          7  out in the BID laws will not be exceeded.

          8                 3) That the proper notice of the

          9  proposed budget increase is published in a

         10  newspaper.

         11                 In addition, although the BID law

         12  only requires notice of this action by publication,

         13  we inform the Department of Small Business Services

         14  at the hearing two weeks ago, that we would like to

         15  see notices mailed to all property owners in the two

         16  BIDs of the proposed budget increases and the data

         17  for today's hearing.

         18                 So, today we will only consider

         19  granting the increases to the BIDs if they have

         20  satisfied the SDBS, that they have mailed the

         21  agreed-upon notice to all property owners in their

         22  district.

         23                 Next, we will conduct a first hearing

         24  on Intro. No. 389, a bill that would centralize the

         25  process of handling claims by the City against third
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          2  parties in the Comptroller's Office, and attempts to

          3  provide incentives for successful claims handling

          4  two agencies.

          5                 Under the Charter, the Comptroller

          6  has the final say in the settlement of any claims

          7  the City has against third parties. Most of these

          8  claims are for damage to City property. However, it

          9  seems that in practice the process of attempting to

         10  settle these claims is fragmented.

         11                 Some agencies handle some of their

         12  own claims. The Law Department gets larger claims,

         13  some of which they handle and some of which they

         14  farm out to outside collection firms.

         15                 It appears that the Comptroller's

         16  Office sometimes gets involved in the actual

         17  settlement process, rather than in just the final

         18  sign-off or rejection of a settlement, if an agency

         19  goes to them and does not get involved until the

         20  end, when agencies do not send claims to them.  The

         21  Comptroller's Office and the sponsors of the

         22  legislation believe that the current patchwork

         23  process makes it difficult for the City to realize

         24  all the money it could be getting for these claims.

         25                 Today we'll attempt to understand how
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          2  the process works, in the hopes that we can improve

          3  upon it.

          4                 Finally, we are considering three

          5  preconsidered partial tax exemptions for properties

          6  in Council Member Serrano's and Council Member

          7  Foster's districts.

          8                 These exemptions will go to buildings

          9  that HPD has been trying to preserve as low and

         10  moderate income housing, and I understand that both

         11  Council members are in favor of this action.

         12                 We may also be taking a recess and

         13  come back, probably around 12:00, to take up another

         14  item at a later date.

         15                 We will now hear from Commissioner

         16  Andrew Schwartz of the Department of Small Business

         17  Services.

         18                 We've been joined by a number of my

         19  colleagues since the last round of introductions.

         20  Starting on the left, we have our Deputy Majority

         21  Leader Council Member Bill Perkins. We have Council

         22  Member Tracy Boyland from Brooklyn; Council Member

         23  Simcha Felder from Brooklyn; Council Member Bill

         24  DeBlasio from Brooklyn. Brooklyn is in the house.

         25  Council Member Robert Jackson from Manhattan, and
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          2  the Brooklyn of all Brooklyns, Council Member Lew

          3  Fidler from Brooklyn.

          4                 Is Commissioner Schwartz here?

          5                 Well, should we go on?

          6                 All right, let's hear from Brighton

          7  Beach. We have Ms. Makhuiu. Okay, just state your

          8  name for the record and title. And we're being

          9  joined by Council Member Madeline Provenzano from

         10  the Bronx.

         11                 MS. MAKHUIA: Yeleuo Makhuiu, Brighton

         12  Beach Business Improvement District, from Russia

         13  with love.

         14                 Good morning. First of all, I would

         15  like to express my deepest appreciation for a chance

         16  to speak on behalf of Brighton Beach Business

         17  Improvement District.

         18                 The Board of Directors of the

         19  Brighton Beach Business Improvement District has

         20  voted on the $10,000 annual special assessment

         21  increase which will be in Fiscal Year 2004 budget of

         22  the BID.

         23                 Brighton Beach Business Improvement

         24  District was formed in 1987, and since that time its

         25  assessment stays the same, regardless of significant
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          2  economic changes.

          3                 The total change in rate per front

          4  for the Year 1993-2004 reports will be seven

          5  percent. Average annual increase in rate per front

          6  for the year 1993-2004 reports will be less than one

          7  percent.

          8                 Also, I would like to give a few

          9  examples what affect such increase will have on

         10  selected district properties.

         11                 For example, for the front lot, 18

         12  feet, it will be $25.78 and for the front lot 109

         13  feet it will be $156.10.

         14                 As you mentioned before, the

         15  significant economic changes and other obstacles,

         16  such as implementing new programs, increase in

         17  membership fees and other expenses, made Brighton

         18  Beach BID significant budget changes necessary in

         19  order to provide services to our members and

         20  customers.

         21                 Despite the fact we have decreased

         22  administrative expenses by 24 percent, despite

         23  college interns and other volunteers, we still need

         24  additional funds.

         25                 We have agreed to put emphasis in
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          2  bringing our area to the level appropriate for the

          3  popular tourist destination. To do so, we have

          4  decided to implement an aggressive graffiti removal

          5  program, enhance and continue promotional events,

          6  publish promotional materials.

          7                 We believe that Brighton Beach

          8  Avenue, well known as the Little Russia in New York,

          9  should be one of the must see destinations.

         10                 As an Executive Director of Brighton

         11  Beach Improvement District, I would assure that each

         12  and every dime from our budget would work for the

         13  prosperity of our great City, its residents and

         14  guests.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, have you

         17  mailed notices to all property owners in the BID?

         18                 MS. MAKHUIU: Yes, we did.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         20                 And when was that done?

         21                 MS. MAKHUIU: It was done before May

         22  16.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         24                 MS. MAKHUIU: And we did publish legal

         25  notice in local newspaper on May 16th.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, do any of

          3  my colleagues have any questions?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Welcome,

          5  Yeleuo, to the City Council again.

          6                 MS. MAKHUIU: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: She's been

          8  here before. And from what I gather, everybody seems

          9  to be supportive of this in the community, and it's

         10  going to be my future district, so I am supportive

         11  of it as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're going

         13  to hear from the MetroTech BID, and then we'll take

         14  a vote on both of them together.

         15                 MS. MAKHUIU: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So why don't you

         17  just take a seat in the back.

         18                 Is someone here from the MetroTech

         19  BID?

         20                 Okay, is Commissioner Schwartz here?

         21                 Approach the bench.

         22                 All right, we're going to take a

         23  one-minute recess, because the Commissioner should

         24  be here any minute, and the other BID will be here

         25  in a minute.
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          2                 Members, please stay nearby.

          3                 (Recess taken.)

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're going to

          5  hear from Commissioner Andrew Schwartz of the Small

          6  Business Services.

          7                 COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: Thank you,

          8  Chairman. It's Andrew Schwartz, Deputy Commissioner,

          9  Department of Small Business Services. SBS fully

         10  supports passage today of these bills concerning an

         11  increase in the amount to be expended by the

         12  Brighton Beach BID and the MetroTech area Business

         13  Improvement District.

         14                 As required by the Resolution passed

         15  by this Committee and the Council, the two BIDs have

         16  certified that they mailed a notice of today's

         17  public hearing to all assessed property owners

         18  within the districts, and published a notice in the

         19  local newspapers specifying the time and place of

         20  the hearing and the amounts proposed to be spent.

         21                 The BIDs are requesting increases to

         22  further expand their services currently provided.

         23                 In the case of Brighton Beach, this

         24  is the first increase the BID will have since being

         25  formed and increase its budget from 150 to 160,000
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          2  dollars.

          3                 In the case of MetroTech, the

          4  increase reflects the approval of the recent

          5  expansion of this district to include one property,

          6  the Renaissance Plaza, home to the Marriot Hotel and

          7  nearly 1 million square feet of Class A office

          8  space. The owners fully support of the inclusion of

          9  the property.

         10                 The budget of the MetroTech BID would

         11  be increased from approximately 2.189 million to

         12  2,475,936. Your support of this bill, and the City's

         13  Business Improvement District Program is greatly

         14  appreciated.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Does anyone have

         17  any questions for Commissioner Schwartz?

         18                 You stated that notice was given to

         19  all the property owners in the district?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ: Yes, we

         21  have certifications from both BIDs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. Okay, that

         23  was my understanding.

         24                 Okay, do we have someone from the

         25  MetroTech BID? Here he comes. Good timing. Timing is
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          2  everything.

          3                 Members, we're going to have a vote

          4  immediately after we hear from the MetroTech BID.

          5  So, if you could please stay around, we need a

          6  quorum and we'll hear the Comptroller's, the item

          7  for first hearing, after we take a vote. We don't

          8  need a quorum for the second item.

          9                 Okay, we'll have testimony in the

         10  meantime on the Land Use items we have. We have

         11  David Pechefsky from the Finance staff.

         12                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Good morning. I'm

         13  David Pechefsky from City Council Finance.

         14                 You'll see there's a memo from myself

         15  to Chairman Weprin and the Finance Committee, which

         16  hopefully you received yesterday, that indicates

         17  that there are three preconsidered Land Use items

         18  before you.

         19                 These involve properties in the

         20  Bronx, two buildings in Council Member Serrano's

         21  district, and two buildings in Council Member

         22  Foster's district. These are buildings HPD has been

         23  working with to preserve as affordable housing.

         24  They're requested a tax exemption of 40 years, and

         25  both Council Members approve of these actions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any questions on

          3  the Land Use items?

          4                 Okay, thank you, Mr. Pechefsky.

          5                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're going to

          7  hear from Michael Weiss, Executive Director of the

          8  MetroTech BID.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Mr.

         10  Chairman?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It's my

         13  fault Mike is late. Because he was here and we had a

         14  conversation, I thought the meeting would be later.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So, rather

         17  than let him take the blame, let me take the blame.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So we'll blame

         19  Council Member Provenzano. Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: It's my

         21  fault, Mike. Welcome.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I didn't hear

         23  what you said. Can you say it again?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'll take

         25  the blame.
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          2                 MR. WEISS: My name is Mike Weiss. I'm

          3  Executive Director of the MetroTech Business

          4  Improvement District in downtown Brooklyn.

          5                 This resolution, which is before you

          6  this morning, 809-A, I believe, is a technical

          7  amendment in a way to prior action that the Council

          8  took in February.

          9                 In February, the Council, this

         10  Committee and the Council voted to include the

         11  Renaissance Plaza complex or development in Downtown

         12  Brooklyn which contains the Marriot Hotel into the

         13  boundaries, within the boundaries of the MetroTech

         14  BID, and at the same time the legislation increasing

         15  the BID's assessment rate by ten percent was passed.

         16                 Those two actions happen to come at

         17  the same time to this body, something that nobody

         18  anticipated, and, so the cap, which is the amount of

         19  money that we are allowed to collect in assessments,

         20  in each one of these pieces of legislation only took

         21  into account that one piece of legislation, but not

         22  the two of them together.

         23                 So, what that means is that our cap,

         24  which allows us to collect the assessments, does not

         25  permit us to collect both the ten percent, which you
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          2  already approved, and also the additional revenue

          3  from the Renaissance Plaza complex. So this

          4  resolution allows that cap to be raised.

          5                 In effect then, this does not raise

          6  the assessment levels above that which you already

          7  approved, all it does is adjust our cap so that the

          8  billing by the Department of Finance can take place.

          9                 It basically involves one building,

         10  which again is on Adam Street. The owner of the

         11  building has been fully supportive and continues to

         12  support this action.

         13                 Due notice was given to all of the

         14  tenants and the owners through a newspaper

         15  advertisement and also certified letters that were

         16  sent by the BID, and I have a statement signed that

         17  we did our due diligence in that way.

         18                 So, we very much appreciate the past

         19  support of the Council on this issue. I think it

         20  enables us to add an important new building to the

         21  Downtown Brooklyn community and to the Business

         22  Improvement District, and we thank you for your past

         23  support and urge you to support this resolution.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Weiss.

          3                 Have you seen that notice was mailed

          4  to all property owners in the BID?

          5                 MR. WEISS: Yes, it was.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

          7                 MR. WEISS: On May 14th.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, thank you.

          9  And it was published prior to that?

         10                 MR. WEISS: Yes. It was published

         11  actually on May 16th in the Downtown Brooklyn Daily

         12  Eagle.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, around the

         14  same time.

         15                 Any of my colleagues have any

         16  questions?

         17                 Seeing none, thank you very much.

         18                 MR. WEISS: Thank you. And thank the

         19  members of the Council, and thank you, Chairman

         20  Weprin.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         22                 Yes, we're going to proceed to a

         23  vote, I think. We're going to proceed to a vote.

         24  We're going to couple all the items, unless there's

         25  an objection as one vote, unless anybody objects.
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          2                 No objection, we're going to have all

          3  the items coupled with one vote.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Mr.

          5  Chairman? Chairman Weprin?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Can we just

          8  clarify what item?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Which items? Yes.

         10  We're voting on the two BIDs, increases in the BIDs,

         11  the MetroTech and the Brighton Beach; and the three

         12  the Land Use items which are in Council Member

         13  Serrano and Foster's district, and they're supported

         14  by both members.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Aye.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The record will

         24  be kept open for further members to vote.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

          3  abstentions, all items are adopted.

          4                 Council Members, please sign the

          5  Committee reports. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're now

          7  going to hear testimony on Intro. 389, and we have

          8  representatives of the Comptroller's Office. Would

          9  they like to come forward?

         10                 Okay, if you could all identify

         11  yourselves for the record, with names and titles,

         12  please. The light has to be off to be on.

         13                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Eduardo

         14  Castell, Deputy Comptroller, External Relations.

         15                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Good

         16  morning. Herb Barbot, Deputy Comptroller for Claims

         17  and Adjudications.

         18                 MR. AARONSON: Mike Aaronson, Bureau

         19  Chief, Bureau of Law and Adjustment, for the

         20  Comptroller's Office.

         21                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Good

         22  morning, Chairman Weprin, members of the Finance

         23  Committee, it's good to be back again.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  testify in support of Intro. 389.
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          2                 At the outset, we would like to

          3  apologize on behalf of the Comptroller, who due to a

          4  scheduling conflict was unable to testify today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We saw him plenty

          6  yesterday.

          7                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Yes, you

          8  did. Thank you so much.

          9                 We also would like to commend

         10  Councilman Avella and his staff and Committee staff

         11  for their work on this legislation.

         12                 This Committee and members of the

         13  City Council know better than most that these are

         14  very challenging financial times. Intro. 389 would

         15  allow the Comptroller to more effectively and

         16  efficiently recover monies for the City of New York

         17  for damage caused to New York City property by the

         18  negligence or malfeasance of individuals or private

         19  companies.

         20                 The New York City Charter already

         21  empowers the Comptroller to settle and/or adjust all

         22  of the City's claims. Agencies are required by the

         23  Charter to obtain approval from the Comptroller's

         24  Office prior to settling any of their agency's

         25  affirmative claims.
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          2                 At present the various City agencies

          3  individually pursue their own affirmative claims,

          4  and then contact the Comptroller's Office for

          5  approval only when they're about to compromise a

          6  claim.

          7                 This process has not only created a

          8  staffing and procedural redundancies that can be

          9  eliminated, but has hindered efforts to create a

         10  more effective and cohesive approach to maximizing

         11  collections on behalf of the City.

         12                 In fact, a 1997 study by Price

         13  Waterhouse concluded that the current process is

         14  inefficient and should be replaced by the

         15  centralization of affirmative claims.

         16                 Indeed, a recent analysis also by the

         17  Independent Budget Office shows that the Comptroller

         18  collected an average of $3,515 per claim. In

         19  contrast, the Department of Citywide Administrative

         20  Services recovered on average $1,149 per claim. The

         21  Department of Transportation recovered $1,158 per

         22  claim, and the Fire Department recovered $1,375 per

         23  claim.

         24                 The Law Department, the City's

         25  Corporation Counsel, recovered an average of $644
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          2  per claim, through its own internal operation, while

          3  the collection agency to which it outsources netted

          4  $3,022 per claim, after fees and disbursements were

          5  deducted.

          6                 Now, I just want to clarify, this

          7  does not refer to matters of litigation the Corp

          8  Counsel is in, this is specifically in the pursuit

          9  of affirmative claims.

         10                 According to the IBO, the entity with

         11  the next best collection average to the Comptroller

         12  is an outside private collection agency.

         13                 This is not to slight the efforts of

         14  the various agencies, but to recognize that they can

         15  be more effective by focusing on their core mission

         16  and responsibilities and leaving the collection of

         17  claims to an agency better suited to do so.

         18                 The Comptroller's Affirmative Claims

         19  Division is headed by an attorney and consists of

         20  two claim adjustors, one of whom is a licensed New

         21  York State General Adjustor, who bring not only a

         22  combined total of over 25 years of experience in

         23  claims adjusting, but more importantly, an expertise

         24  in computing comparative negligence and negotiating

         25  settlements, primarily with property and casualty
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          2  insurance companies.

          3                 Since starting this Division in

          4  January of this year, the results have been very

          5  rewarding. As you can see by the enclosed chart, at

          6  the back of the testimony, in five months the

          7  Comptroller's Affirmative Claims Division has

          8  collected nearly $328,000, with collections ranging

          9  from $38,000 in January to a high of $103,000 for

         10  this month.

         11                 While efforts historically have been

         12  focused on NYPD claims, our office has now broadened

         13  the scope.

         14                 For example, the Department of Parks

         15  and Recreation has begun to collaborate with us on

         16  collection efforts. Parks recently notified our

         17  office about an incident in which someone, while

         18  taking driving lessons, drove into the Queens

         19  Museum.

         20                 Parks supplied our office with the

         21  accident report, an estimate for damages, and a

         22  contact person at the Queens Museum.

         23                 With their cooperation, we're now in

         24  the process of recovering damages of approximately

         25  $8,400. Parks should be commended for this
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          2  collaboration.

          3                 As another example, in discussions

          4  with the Department of Environmental Protection

          5  regarding its affirmative claims recovery efforts,

          6  we discovered that it does not have staff to handle

          7  these claims.

          8                 Last month, a Director collected

          9  $1,200 on what we believe to be the first-ever

         10  hydrant claim, which is property managed by DEP. DEP

         11  is willing to cooperate with our staff and have the

         12  Comptroller's Affirmative Division handle those

         13  claims. Again, we commend DEP for their cooperative

         14  efforts on behalf of New York City taxpayers.

         15                 This bill further proposes quite

         16  creatively, that a portion of the recovered amounts

         17  be shared with the agency submitting the affirmative

         18  claim. The City's General Revenue Fund will receive

         19  80 percent of the collections, while 20 percent will

         20  be reserved or credited to the agencies that

         21  identify and report affirmative claim opportunities

         22  to the Comptroller.

         23                 This bill recognizes that an

         24  incentive sill encourage agencies to aggressively

         25  identify claims opportunities.
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          2                 This section is also important

          3  because it requires that the agency use any money

          4  recovered for risk management purposes, as

          5  determined by the agency head.

          6                 The ingenuity of this incentive

          7  provision should not be easily dismissed by those

          8  who may raise objections because of its originality.

          9  We need to be creative to develop incentives and to

         10  reward desired behavior.

         11                 At a time when we should only be

         12  concerned with maximizing the City's revenues, this

         13  legislation would eliminate duplication of efforts

         14  Citywide, and provide for a more effective

         15  deployment of personnel within their agencies.

         16                 In addition, since our Office handles

         17  claims against the City as well, we are in the best

         18  position to identify counterclaims at an early stage

         19  in the settlement process, thereby taking advantage

         20  of another opportunity for further savings.

         21                 By centralizing all affirmative

         22  claims into one office, Intro. 389 would increase

         23  the City's total collections, create an incentive

         24  for agencies to identify affirmative claims, and

         25  give agency heads additional funds to dedicate to
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          2  risk management purposes.

          3                 In conclusion, this legislation makes

          4  fiscal sense, is a good management tool and deserves

          5  your support. Thank you.

          6                 I'd also just like to thank the

          7  efforts of Herb Barbot and Mike Aaronson from the

          8  Claims Department, and Martha Taylor, who we

          9  referred to in the testimony as a Director. She is

         10  the individual directing the claims and they've been

         11  doing a fantastic job.

         12                 Thank you for the opportunity and we

         13  welcome any questions you may have.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         15                 First, I would like to ask Council

         16  Member Moskowitz if she would care to vote on the

         17  three Land Use items and the two BID items.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes, I

         19  would. I vote aye on all three. Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you. And

         21  if you could summarize this within about one or two

         22  paragraphs, how would you do that, sir?

         23                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Well, the

         24  Comptroller's Office has put together a sort of very

         25  aggressive initiative to go out and pursue
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          2  affirmative claims. That is where damage has been

          3  done to City property to the City, and there is a

          4  third party that could be, we could be recovering

          5  those dollars for that damage too. And typically

          6  what will happen is a claim is filed against the

          7  City, we settle or go to court with the person, the

          8  claimant, if there's a claimant involved, and we do

          9  not pursue the party, in many cases insurance

         10  agencies, that if it's a vehicular accident and

         11  vehicular insurance, or other types of insurance,

         12  that is responsible, under their insurance policy,

         13  to cover damages and claims. So, it is an effort to

         14  go out to aggressively seek dollars for the City

         15  from third parties that are not now paying who are

         16  responsible to pay, and as I've said, we've been

         17  very successful in doing that.

         18                 This legislation would consolidate

         19  the efforts that many of the different agencies have

         20  in pursuing those claims, concentrate them in the

         21  Comptroller's Office, we'd still be collaborating

         22  with the agencies, we would still be working with

         23  them, but really it centralizes the efforts in a

         24  Comptroller's Office in a way that we think would be

         25  more efficient and more effective.
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          2                 I don't know if Herb wants to add

          3  anything.

          4                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: I would

          5  just add that in any large organization with various

          6  different divisions and departments, you typically

          7  don't find each division in the Department doing

          8  their own affirmative claims. That's an activity

          9  that is usually centralized and we have the

         10  expertise to do that.

         11                 If you look at the IBO report, the

         12  IBO report is very clear on the agency,

         13  Comptroller's Office, that has the highest average

         14  settlement per claim.

         15                 Now, that's only with the claims that

         16  actually get settled and negotiated, there's also a

         17  lot of claims that have never been recovered.

         18                 For example, the fire hydrant that we

         19  mentioned in the testimony, that was an activity

         20  that never before did DEP engage in. So, now, for

         21  the first time we're going after, it's usually just

         22  motorists that back up and knock down a fire

         23  hydrant, at $1,200 per fire hydrant the City is

         24  replacing it at a cost to the City and not the

         25  insurance company of the motorist.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

          3                 And Council Member Moskowitz, you had

          4  a question?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes, thank

          6  you.

          7                 This seems eminently sensible, and

          8  it's hard to believe we don't do this yet.

          9                 I guess I had two questions. One is,

         10  mechanically, is there any difference in terms of

         11  jurisdiction as to who would do the recovering? And

         12  two, do other cities do this, presumably if it's a

         13  good idea they do, and have they had any problems in

         14  its implementation?

         15                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Well, we

         16  haven't looked at other cities for this one, we have

         17  actually for some of the other initiatives, but not

         18  for this one.

         19                 Now, the process has sort of just

         20  developed this way, it's something that has just

         21  sort of been organic.

         22                 In 1997, again, as referred to in the

         23  testimony, Price Waterhouse came in to examine the

         24  operation of the Comptroller's Claims Office and the

         25  Law Department, and Price Waterhouse itself referred
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          2  to it as a fragmented approach and recommended

          3  centralization of affirmative claims.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: But this

          5  going after third parties, presumably the Law

          6  Department would be involved in actually pursuing,

          7  right? It's not that the Comptroller's Office --

          8                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Right.

          9  Well, they would be post litigation. At the start,

         10  again, just to refer to testimony, the situation

         11  currently with the Queens Museum where someone ran

         12  into the Queens Museum, the information was provided

         13  to us. Before any litigation has commenced we have

         14  contacted the insurance company. The insurance

         15  company recognizes that it was their insured that

         16  was damaged and they're currently working with us to

         17  effect that recovery.

         18                 So, it's actually a savings to the

         19  Law Department also. This is work that they don't

         20  have to do and they can focus on more important

         21  litigation.

         22                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: If it

         23  involves litigation, it obviously involve and should

         24  involve the Law Department, and this legislation I

         25  believe in any way touches upon that, infringes upon
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          2  that, it sort of separates out the pursuit of the

          3  affirmative claims directly with the agencies in a

          4  way that's not litigious or before this court

          5  action.

          6                 And while we have not looked at other

          7  cities, the mention that Herb referred to, as far as

          8  the consolidation of the affirmative claims, that to

          9  my understanding what happens in the private sector

         10  in many cases where entities pursue affirmative

         11  claims from insurance companies, so it's modeled on

         12  that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Council Member

         15  Avella.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Just a couple

         17  of quick comments, and, first of all, to refer to my

         18  colleague Council Member Moskowitz. It's amazing

         19  that we don't have this policy now, it really is.

         20                 I mean, I've been working on this for

         21  ten years believe it or not. I call it, "you break

         22  it, you pay for it." The City has no comprehensive

         23  policy to recover these costs, and I'd like to

         24  congratulate Comptroller Thompson and his staff for

         25  working with my office to put this legislation
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          2  together.

          3                 This will save conservatively tens of

          4  millions of dollars each year, and in the fiscal

          5  situation that we are in, that's very important.

          6                 I could tell you, I brought this up

          7  at many community meetings, and I'm surprised by

          8  agency personnel, City workers who then come up to

          9  me and say, you know, you're right, the fire

         10  hydrant, the stop sign, the street light, where we

         11  are not going after those people that damage City

         12  property, and some of them have said to me the

         13  money, especially like from DOT, may be in $100

         14  million. It's going to be huge. And part of this

         15  legislation incorporates an incentive program by

         16  which it will encourage citizens to report this and

         17  they will get a small percentage, up to $500 as a

         18  reward, so to help spot this damage as it goes on.

         19                 But I do appreciate the support of

         20  Comptroller Bill Thompson and the staff for putting

         21  this together.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         23                 Council Member Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I also want to

         25  congratulate the Comptroller and Councilman Avella
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          2  for bringing this issue forward. It obviously is

          3  something that is long overdue. A question, if I

          4  could.

          5                 This only relates to things that

          6  would be in the nature of a tort claim; am I

          7  correct?

          8                 This is not a contract balance is

          9  owed, fines?

         10                 MR. AARONSON: Tort property damage

         11  claims.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. For what

         13  purpose was an outside collection agency used up to

         14  now?

         15                 MR. AARONSON: I'm sorry?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: For what

         17  purpose was an outside collection agency used up to

         18  now?

         19                 MR. AARONSON: We don't use an outside

         20  collection agency. As I understand it, the Law

         21  Department uses an outside collection agency.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And for any

         23  particular type of claim?

         24                 MR. AARONSON: I think the Law

         25  Department would be best suited to ask that question
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          2  of.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay. I'm not

          4  surprised that an outside collection agency would

          5  have a higher return because they're going to cherry

          6  pick the big items and work on them. That's what

          7  collection companies do.

          8                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: But

          9  according to the IBO they actually don't have a

         10  higher collection rate than the Comptroller's Office

         11  does.

         12                 In the list, first comes the

         13  Comptroller's Office with the highest, and then the

         14  second is the outside collection agency.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Right, that

         16  they should be as high, because they are going to

         17  look for the bigger ticket items, that's how they

         18  make their money.

         19                 Would this bill eliminate the need

         20  for any outside collection operations?

         21                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL:

         22  Specifically for the affirmative claims?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         24                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Well, I

         25  don't know if you'd ever eliminate, I think you'd

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  always consider it as a possible option. We just

          3  believe at this point that, and the Comptroller's

          4  currently have the structure, the expertise and the

          5  staff to be able to do this without necessarily

          6  going out to collection agencies.

          7                 I think the other point, just in

          8  reference to the Collection agencies and the

          9  cherry-picking, there is, as the Councilman Avella

         10  mentioned, there's an incredible amount of claims

         11  that are just never brought forward.

         12                 There's been an incredible amount of

         13  damage that's out there, and it's one of those small

         14  things that gets cast to the side, and most of the

         15  focus is on the tort matter where there is

         16  litigation, the large settlements, and these sorts

         17  of property damage issues, while we do some

         18  collection, of course, and the City does some

         19  collection, the different agencies and the Law

         20  Department, it's hard to get a full handle, get your

         21  arms around the potential for what goes on out there

         22  that just the City doesn't pursue.

         23                 And I think in addition to sort of

         24  better going on and collecting the dollars and

         25  negotiating what you could collect, what you're
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          2  really looking at is a concerted effort to better

          3  identify those claims that the City at this point is

          4  just completely, I wouldn't say ignoring, they just

          5  don't have the time to focus the energy and the

          6  resources to be able to go after, and we think that

          7  this would effectively do that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I agree and

          9  appreciate that point wholeheartedly. I'm just

         10  suggesting that if we can do it in-house, I mean

         11  collection agencies make money by collecting fees

         12  for what they collect, and if we can do it in-house

         13  it will probably be more cost efficient as well.

         14                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, while

         16  we're looking at it, we should, I think, do both.

         17                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL:

         18  Absolutely.

         19                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Again, the

         20  Comptroller's Office does not use a collection

         21  agency. Now, what would happen is a claim that

         22  didn't settle with us would then be sent over to the

         23  Law Department for litigation, and it may be a claim

         24  that's not significant enough for them to put one of

         25  their litigators on, so they may then refer it to an
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          2  outside agency, but, again, as Mike said, I think

          3  it's a question better answered by the Law

          4  Department.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Is the Law

          6  Department here?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. They're

          8  going to be testifying afterwards, Council member.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I've got a

         11  couple of questions.

         12                 Could the Comptroller's Office handle

         13  pre-litigation settlement negotiations for claims

         14  that the Law Department currently sends to outside

         15  collection agencies without additional resources or

         16  staff? And if not, what kind of additional resources

         17  and staff would you need?

         18                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: At this

         19  moment we don't expect that we would need additional

         20  resources. We have three people, as we said in the

         21  testimony, that are devoted to this right now. They

         22  are incredibly efficient and effective at doing

         23  this. There would be, obviously hopefully, an

         24  increase in the affirmative claims that get referred

         25  to the Comptroller's Office but we don't expect that
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          2  we would need additional personnel to handle that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. And do you

          4  have an estimate of the savings that we're talking

          5  about that might be realized as a result of this

          6  legislation?

          7                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Just now,

          8  if you look at the averages that were in the IBO

          9  report, if you looked at DOT and FDNY and DCAS, if

         10  they had collected an average that approached our

         11  average, that would add another $2.75 million to the

         12  City treasury. So, just in the fact that their

         13  collections are so much lower than the Comptroller's

         14  Office, results in a real loss to the City's

         15  treasury.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's on an

         17  annual basis?

         18                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: An annual

         19  basis.

         20                 MR. AARONSON: An annual basis.

         21                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: The one

         22  thing is there may be different types of claims

         23  filed amongst the different agencies, so that's one

         24  figure. And the other part of this is given the fact

         25  that it's a very scattered approach right now to how
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          2  it's managed, it's hard to get a full handle, as I

          3  said before, on what the actual savings could be,

          4  having it centralized in one place I think would

          5  assist us in being able to better do that to

          6  identify the savings that could be there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. And what

          8  kind of qualifications do the individuals that would

          9  be assigned to collect on these affirmative claims;

         10  what would be their qualifications?

         11                 MR. AARONSON: Well, our current staff

         12  right now are professional claim adjusters. I mean

         13  that's what they do every day and have over 25 years

         14  of combined experience. So, these are very senior

         15  professional adjusters who work on this, and we need

         16  those when we deal with an insurance company who has

         17  an adjustor on the other side of the phone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, and have

         19  you discussed the kind of problems that they've

         20  encountered now on trying to collect on affirmative

         21  claims?

         22                 MR. AARONSON: Well, I mean, one of

         23  the things is to really be effective you have to get

         24  notice of these claims very early, and we basically

         25  have to go to agencies ourselves and pick up
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          2  documentation. So that's like kind of a redundant

          3  inefficient way of really approaching these claims.

          4                 The other thing that you have to know

          5  is that, while we go after insurance companies for

          6  damage to City property, those same insurance

          7  companies often will go after the City for damage to

          8  private vehicles, and there's a concept of

          9  comparative negligence in the insurance industry

         10  which kind of says that you pay for only that part

         11  of the claim that you're responsible for.

         12                 When someone goes and settles at an

         13  agency, not knowing that there may be a claim

         14  against the City itself, they may be willing to only

         15  accept, you know, say that the City is only

         16  responsible for 20 percent of the damage, or 20

         17  percent of the claim.

         18                 When they don't know that we have

         19  another claim, when we go to adjust that claim then

         20  we're in a bad position because then the insurance

         21  company says, well, you said you're only 20 percent

         22  involved in the claim, that means the City owes 80

         23  percent of the damage.

         24                 So, it really has an effect right

         25  down the line.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do any of my

          3  colleagues have questions?

          4                 Council Member Felder.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Good morning.

          6                 I know that we have representatives

          7  from some of the City agencies that you've talked

          8  about that are going to be testifying, so I just

          9  want to play devil's advocate. Even though it seems

         10  perfect, and my colleague Councilman Avella says

         11  he's been working on it for ten years, and sometimes

         12  status quo you just need somebody to come along and

         13  finally change things, but if you were not working

         14  for the Comptroller's Office, can you explain to me

         15  why things are the way they are?

         16                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: No.

         17  Because it doesn't make sense that every agency is

         18  devoting personnel to this activity.

         19                 An agency like DOT that should be out

         20  there repairing sidewalks, repairing streets and

         21  really sort of fulfilling the basic mission of that

         22  particular agency, should not also be involved in

         23  this little sort of side job.

         24                 Our office is in fact like the

         25  insurance company for the City. We're the party
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          2  that's responsible for settling adjustment claims,

          3  we have that expertise in-house. There's no other

          4  large corporate entity that I'm familiar with where

          5  every sort of division and department does their own

          6  affirmative claims. You usually have a centralized

          7  legal staff that's responsible for handling these

          8  types of claims.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So, you're

         10  saying to me that other than wanting to keep things

         11  at the status quo, there's no reason that the

         12  agencies that will testify after you want things to

         13  remain the same; is that so?

         14                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER BARBOT: Well, I'm

         15  sure you'll hear reasons from the other agencies.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But there's no

         17  logic, you can't understand any logic --

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR CASTELL: I would

         19  say, Councilman, that it seems on the one hand,

         20  first of all, as Herb said, agency personnel, we're

         21  not going to tell the agencies what their core

         22  mission is, what they should do, but clearly

         23  providing the services that they're supposed to be

         24  providing is what we know they focus on when under

         25  the Charter we do settlement of claims.
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          2                 When we feel that in some cases some

          3  agencies may be more aggressive about it and helpful

          4  and others may not, it creates a disparate level of,

          5  as I said, communication cohesion on it.

          6                 In addition, it could create savings

          7  for the agencies themselves if they can dedicate

          8  their personnel to the things that they're doing and

          9  leave this type of work to the Comptroller's Office,

         10  whereas you said, I think both the Charter, I think

         11  both common sense, I think good management and

         12  fiscal prudence say it makes sense to put it

         13  together.

         14                 I can see someone saying leave things

         15  as they are, we think they work fine, I would say we

         16  believe they work better if we were to do it

         17  cohesively, and that's not any way a knock on the

         18  agencies, this is a way of saying some folks know

         19  how to do things particularly different. We would

         20  not tell DOT to say how you should, you know, pave a

         21  pothole, our claims area would not do that.

         22                 We'd say let us handle the claims,

         23  particularly affirmative claims there and just say,

         24  it is our expertise, it is what we do, and we'd

         25  still be collaborating with the agencies that said I
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          2  think it makes perfect logic and sense.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: But to answer

          4  my question, with all due respect, is that there's a

          5  difference between consolidating or efficiencies by

          6  consolidating things in one place, and there's a

          7  difference between something that somebody said

          8  about millions of dollars being lost the way it's

          9  being done.

         10                 And in your testimonies, or your

         11  testimony, you said both things, both that it's more

         12  efficient, and both that the way it's being done

         13  now, it's not merely the consolidation of the

         14  agencies you're taking care of, you're saying that

         15  the way it's done now, it's not being done well by

         16  the agencies. I don't want to misquote you.

         17                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: No,

         18  absolutely. It can be done, as I said just now it

         19  could be done a lot --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You said you

         21  can do it a lot better.

         22                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: We can do

         23  it a lot better, absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. You can

         25  do it a lot better than they can do it. Which means
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          2  that, I just want to have it clear, that you're

          3  saying that the agencies that are doing it now, the

          4  City is losing millions of dollars because you can

          5  get the City, you know, save the City a lot more

          6  money doing it --

          7                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: I would

          8  agree.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Is that right?

         10                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Yes,

         11  that's correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: All right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any further

         14  questions for these witnesses?

         15                 If not, thank you very much.

         16                 DEPUTY COMPTROLLER CASTELL: Thank

         17  you, Chairman Weprin and members of the Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll now hear

         19  from the Law Department. Alan Kleinman.

         20                 Okay, we also have a representative

         21  from DOT, and also DCAS. Okay, if you could all

         22  identify yourselves, names and titles for the

         23  record?

         24                 MR. KLEINMAN: I am Alan Kleinman, I'm

         25  a Senior Counsel in the Affirmative Litigation
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          2  Division in the New York City Law Department.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FINKELMAN: I'm

          4  Lewis Finkelman, General Counsel, and Deputy

          5  Commissioner for Legal Services.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: Conan

          7  Freud from New York City DOT, Deputy Commissioner

          8  for Administration.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         10                 MR. KLEINMAN: What I would like to do

         11  is give a presentation on behalf of the Law

         12  Department and have the other agencies then add, and

         13  we're happy to discuss the matters that the

         14  Comptroller raised.

         15                 The Affirmative Litigation Division

         16  of the Law Department handles cases in which the

         17  City is a plaintiff. It seeks to vindicate the

         18  City's interest and the public interest through

         19  litigation against the State, the federal

         20  government, private companies, and individuals.

         21                 The Division's cases deal with a wide

         22  variety of subjects, including social welfare

         23  policy, civil RICO, civil rights, fiscal

         24  reimbursement by the State and federal governments,

         25  toxic torts, commercial insurance matters.
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          2                 These cases advance significant and

          3  innovative legal and social policy objectives, and

          4  provide a major source of revenue for the City. In

          5  Fiscal Year 2002, the Division recovered more than

          6  $20 million for the City.

          7                 In the past few years, the Division

          8  has spearheaded the City's lawsuits against tobacco

          9  manufacturers, which resulted in a recovery of $260

         10  million a year in perpetuity for the City, proceeded

         11  against asbestos and lead paint pigment manufactures

         12  to recover the cost of abating asbestos and removing

         13  lead paint from publicly-owned buildings, which has

         14  resulted to date in the recovery of more than $75

         15  million through litigation and participation in

         16  bankruptcies and participated as lead plaintiff

         17  under the private securities Litigation Reform Act

         18  against such companies as Orbital and Cendant.

         19                 The City also seeks to recover where

         20  there is damage to City property. The City has

         21  adopted an aggressive policy in going after those

         22  responsible for such damage. While individual

         23  agencies generally take the lead in initially

         24  seeking recovery, the Affirmative Litigation

         25  Division of the Law Department handles those larger
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          2  cases where there is significant damage to the

          3  City's bridges, piers or other infrastructure, as

          4  well as some cases where the agency efforts at

          5  recovery are not successful.

          6                 I am here today to discuss the City's

          7  efforts to recover in these types of cases and

          8  explain why, while well intentioned, Intro. 389

          9  could actually hinder efforts at recovery.

         10                 However, I should mention first that

         11  questions have been raised about the legality of the

         12  bill. The Comptroller has a legitimate

         13  Charter-granted role in the settlement of claims,

         14  and when an agency or the Law Department is unable

         15  to obtain full recovery, we seek the Comptroller's

         16  approval for any settlement.

         17                 However, until it is clear that there

         18  is something that requires settling, that is, until

         19  the person responsible for the damage refuses to pay

         20  fully for the damage, the Comptroller's involvement

         21  would be premature.

         22                 In addition, the incentive program by

         23  which the Comptroller's settlement would direct a

         24  portion of recovered money to agencies for risk

         25  management programs, runs afoul of the Mayor's and
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          2  the Council's budget powers, under the Charter,

          3  recovered monies go into the general fund, and the

          4  Mayor and the Council through the budget process

          5  appropriate funds for agency purposes.

          6                 Funding of risk management programs

          7  through this incentive program, in addition to

          8  violating the budget provisions of the Charter,

          9  would be arbitrary as there would be no connection

         10  between the money obtained by an agency for such

         11  programs, and the agency's needs.

         12                 But my focus is on the City's current

         13  efforts to recover on damage to City property.

         14  Damage caused to City vehicles or other property is

         15  generally handled in the first instance by the

         16  agency involved. Thus, the City's Department of

         17  Citywide Administrative Services, who will testify

         18  in a minute, handles claims against others who have

         19  damaged City vehicles. The City's Department of

         20  Transportation, who will also testify in a minute,

         21  handles claims arising out of damage to

         22  streetlights, guard rails and other property within

         23  its jurisdiction.

         24                 Similarly, the Fire Department

         25  handles claims arising from damage to the Fire
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          2  Department property.

          3                 In some cases, the Law Department

          4  handles claims immediately on behalf of an agency.

          5  Claims for damage to Police Department vehicles are

          6  sent to the Law Department which seeks to recover

          7  funds from the relevant insurance companies.

          8                 Where the agency or the Law

          9  Department is able to collect 100 percent of the

         10  claim, payment is received and deposited into the

         11  general fund.

         12                 Where a settlement is negotiated for

         13  less than 100 percent, the claim is referred to the

         14  Comptroller to review the settlement, as the City

         15  Charter requires. Thus the Comptroller currently

         16  reviews all proposed settlements for less than full

         17  value.

         18                 Claims that cannot be settled by an

         19  agency are referred to the Law Department. The more

         20  quickly a claim can be referred, the better the

         21  chance to ultimately recover on a claim. Older

         22  claims are more difficult to collect; claims older

         23  than three years after the date of the accident are

         24  barred by the Statute of Limitations. The Law

         25  Department works with agencies to ensure that claims
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          2  that require litigation are referred to us in a

          3  timely fashion.

          4                 Almost all affirmative property

          5  damage claims arising out of motor vehicle accidents

          6  that cannot be settled are referred to a private

          7  collection law firm under contract with the Law

          8  Department.

          9                 This law firm will then seek to

         10  recover on the claim, which may include the

         11  commencing of a lawsuit against the vehicle owner

         12  and driver that caused damage to City property.

         13                 Many of the claims against those who

         14  damage City property are small, in some cases it is

         15  difficult or impossible to identify the tortfeasor.

         16  Even where the tortfeasor is identified, collection

         17  becomes more difficult if there is no insurance.

         18                 The tortfeasor may move, may not be

         19  traceable, or may have no assets obtainable through

         20  the legal process.

         21                 It is most efficient in the first

         22  instance to assign the job of collecting on claims

         23  for damage to City property to the affected agency.

         24  Each agency is best aware of damage to its property.

         25  Because proof of the amount of the claim must be
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          2  assembled for each claim, the involved agency's

          3  expertise is essential.

          4                 For example, DOT knows the cost to

          5  replace each of the many kinds of street lights and

          6  other kinds of its property that may be damaged.

          7                 Claims asserted by an agency can be

          8  resolved by the agency. The Law Department becomes

          9  involved only when settlement has failed and

         10  litigation is required.

         11                 If the matter has to be settled, it

         12  goes to the Comptroller's Office for approval. The

         13  City's Office of Management and Budget, which

         14  oversees agencies' collection efforts, works with

         15  agencies to provide incentives to maximize

         16  collection of affirmative property damage claims,

         17  and take collection of revenues into account in

         18  determining budget allocations.

         19                 While the City is always seeking ways

         20  to improve its efforts to seek recovery from those

         21  who damage City property, this bill, in addition to

         22  raising the legal issues I discussed before, would

         23  add a new layer of bureaucracy to the current

         24  process, hindering, rather than helping our efforts

         25  at maximizing the amounts recovered.
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          2                 By shifting the collection function

          3  from agencies to the Comptroller's Office, this bill

          4  takes it away from those who are best able to

          5  evaluate the damage, and best able to get the

          6  information necessary to aggressively seek recovery.

          7                 In many instances the Comptroller's

          8  Office will need to go back to the agencies to get

          9  follow-up information for each claim.

         10                 This inevitably slows down the

         11  process.

         12                 In addition, the bill reduces

         13  incentives for agencies to maximize recovery as they

         14  will benefit only marginally from collection

         15  efforts.

         16                 Maximizing recovery for the City for

         17  property damage is of course important. However, it

         18  has to be seen within the larger context of the work

         19  of the Law Department and the Comptroller. Both

         20  these offices handle work where millions, if not

         21  billions of dollars, are at stake.

         22                 A larger part of the work of each

         23  agency is to respond to claims against the City,

         24  which each year costs the City more than $500

         25  million.
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          2                 Resources of the Law Department and

          3  the Comptroller's Office must be concentrated on

          4  these far larger claims.

          5                 Given these restraints, the City

          6  manages to collect millions of dollars in

          7  affirmative claims each year, through the

          8  cooperative efforts of the agencies, the Law

          9  Department and the Comptroller's Office, each

         10  performing its appropriate role as set forth in the

         11  Charter.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, if you'll like, I'll

         13  have my colleagues also address?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Sure. Proceed.

         15                 MR. FINKELMAN: Good morning, Chairman

         16  Weprin and members of the Finance Committee. My name

         17  is Lewis Finkelman, I'm General Counsel and Deputy

         18  Commissioner for Legal Services at DCAS.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  testify about Intro. 389, and DCAS' procedures

         21  regarding the handling of affirmative claims

         22  involving the City's automotive fleet.

         23                 I'd like to emphasize that there

         24  already is consolidation of such claims among the

         25  City agencies.
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          2                 There are currently 45 agencies that

          3  participate in DCAS' Affirmative Claims Program,

          4  including all Mayoral agencies, except for NYPD,

          5  FDNY, DEP, DOT and Corrections, and also

          6  participating are elected officials, including the

          7  Comptroller, and the Department of Education.

          8                 We believe that these claims are

          9  already being pursued in a prompt, aggressive and

         10  efficient manner, and that there is, therefore, no

         11  need to change the process in the fashion

         12  contemplated by this bill.

         13                 In the last fiscal year, DCAS

         14  received 511 claims from City agencies. We resolved

         15  406 of them, and corrected approximately $425.

         16                 In 302 cases out of the 406 claims

         17  resolved, DCAS received 100 percent of the claimed

         18  amounts for the damage to City vehicles. Only 29

         19  claims were referred to the Law Department for

         20  collection, and 76 claims were carried over to this

         21  fiscal year, hopefully for resolution.

         22                 I'd like to also add, the head of the

         23  DCAS Affirmative Claims Unit is someone who has the

         24  combined experience of the three representatives of

         25  the Comptroller's Office. She has well over 20 years
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          2  experience.

          3                 Now, she was a person who worked

          4  through the Law Department's Collection Firm for ten

          5  years handling claims on behalf of the City.

          6                 I'd like to also point out that there

          7  is an inherent incentive in collective affirmative

          8  claims in an efficient, aggressive and effective

          9  manner, in that our success in collecting monies

         10  impact the agency's budget. If we exceed our

         11  baseline revenue targets, DCAS can and has received

         12  credits against prospective budget reductions.

         13                 In terms of the process, I'll give

         14  you a brief description of how it's handled by the

         15  agency.

         16                 A claim is initiated upon receipt of

         17  an accident report from the appropriate client

         18  agency representative. An appraisal is performed by

         19  a professional vendor to determine a dollar amount

         20  of the relevant damages. DCAS staff then determines

         21  the identity of the insurance carrier for the

         22  private driver, and notifies the carrier of the

         23  City's claim for damages.

         24                 In those cases, which are a rarity,

         25  in which there are disputes regarding liability, the
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          2  DCAS claims examiner and the insurance company

          3  engage in settlement discussions.

          4                 If those discussions prove fruitful,

          5  we then write a memorandum of settlement that is

          6  forwarded to the Comptroller's Office for approval.

          7                 We also, at the same time, confirm

          8  with the Comptroller's Office, that there are no

          9  other claims pending relating to the same accident

         10  that might compromise the City's position in a

         11  defensive litigation.

         12                 If the parties cannot negotiate a

         13  settlement, then the claim is forwarded to the Law

         14  Department for resolution.

         15                 If the settlement proceeds are not

         16  received within 60 days of the date of the agreed

         17  upon settlement, which I understand has never

         18  happened, we would also refer the file to the Law

         19  Department for handling.

         20                 All the settlement proceeds are

         21  deposited and go into the City's general fund.

         22                 If the goal of this bill is to ensure

         23  that the Comptroller plays a prominent role in the

         24  settlement of such claims, the bill is unnecessary.

         25                 Section 93(i) of the New York City
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          2  Charter already vests the Comptroller with the

          3  authority quote, "to settle and adjust all claims in

          4  favor of or against the City." In accordance with

          5  that section, every single settlement of an

          6  affirmative claim negotiated by DCAS is approved in

          7  writing by the Comptroller.

          8                 The efficiency of this current

          9  process is underscored by the fact that the

         10  Comptroller has seen fit to approve all of the

         11  hundreds of settlements negotiated by DCAS for the

         12  last several years.

         13                 If the goal of this bill is to expand

         14  the Comptroller's role in the settlement process,

         15  the bill is ill-advised, especially given this

         16  agency's success last year in recovering the full

         17  amount of claims in almost 75 percent of those

         18  resolved.

         19                 Such a change would only serve to add

         20  an unnecessary step in the process and inevitably

         21  delay the City's recovery of much needed revenue.

         22                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         23  outline DCAS' role processing affirmative claims for

         24  the city's fleet. I will gladly answer any questions

         25  you may have.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: I don't

          3  have any prepared remarks, but our process is

          4  similar to DCAS' where we receive accident reports,

          5  in a typical instance a parking meter is knocked

          6  down, we'll go to the Bureau of Parking, get the

          7  confirmation, the meter is knocked down, we get an

          8  estimate from the Bureau of Parking that the meter

          9  was knocked and cost $300 to put it back up. We send

         10  that to the insurance company.

         11                 Most of our cases the insurance

         12  company pays full value, and we get the money and

         13  OMB gives us the credit, sort of gives us a

         14  disincentive if we're sharing that credit with

         15  somebody, and I think that's sort of how it works.

         16                 MR. FINKELMAN: If I could just add

         17  one other comment I didn't testify to.

         18                 I also think it's unfair for the

         19  Comptroller to compare the amount of money they

         20  average in recovery, compared to an agency like

         21  DCAS. We handle, obviously, vehicle damage. Many of

         22  the claims are small, dents in cars, so we do

         23  average approximately $1,000, a little over $1,000

         24  in recovery.

         25                 The Comptroller, I know for a fact,
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          2  handles claims where the damage and the amount at

          3  issue far exceeds those that an agency like DCAS

          4  would handle, so I would just ask you to give that

          5  consideration when you compare the number that the

          6  Comptroller is throwing out in terms of the average

          7  that they settle versus other agencies.

          8                 MR. KLEINMAN: We also can't settle

          9  for more than what it's worth. So, the Comptroller

         10  to say that they can settle for 3,000, if the claim

         11  is only worth $300, we're only going to get $300,

         12  we're not going to get $3,000 based on the

         13  mathematical average that they use. I think that is

         14  sort of a flaw in the logic.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Who commissioned

         16  the 1997 Price Waterhouse report on the City's

         17  claims process, and what were the report's

         18  conclusions, and do you agree with those

         19  conclusions.

         20                 MR. KLEINMAN: I believe it was an

         21  undertaking both of the Law Department and the

         22  Comptroller's Office.

         23                 It did mention affirmative property

         24  damage claims, and maybe a page of the report, but I

         25  think the thrust of that report maybe is more
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          2  important for your consideration than that one

          3  particular page.

          4                 As I suggested in my prepared

          5  remarks, the big nut here, in terms of what the

          6  Comptroller's Office and the Law Department does, is

          7  claims against the City where we pay out more than a

          8  half a billion dollars a year, and the Comptroller's

          9  Office has an incredibly important function in that

         10  role, in terms of early settlement, and in terms of

         11  identification of who the insurer may be so claims

         12  against the City can be asserted against an

         13  insurance company, and those matters could be worth

         14  a half million or a million dollars or $2 million

         15  each.

         16                 So, I think the importance of that is

         17  that the Comptroller with his limited resources, as

         18  discussed in the Price Waterhouse Report, and as

         19  confirmed by events that have ensued since then,

         20  needs to dedicate fully its resources to these large

         21  dollar matters, as in large part the Law Department

         22  does also, and what we have here is a system which

         23  works, and which works on the agency level, where it

         24  belongs, where it is most efficient. It is

         25  inherently most efficient for the agencies to do
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          2  that because it requires the least amount of paper

          3  flying from agency to agency.

          4                 So, I think looked at from the Price

          5  Waterhouse picture in general, it is usually

          6  important for the Comptroller and the Law Department

          7  to think about and concentrate on these much larger

          8  exposure things because a million or $2 million paid

          9  out in a claim where if he Comptroller had

         10  identified an available insurance policy, would have

         11  been covered by somebody else, would be equal to the

         12  amount of additional collections that we're talking

         13  about here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Under the current

         15  system, are there any types of claims that go

         16  directly to the Comptroller's Office for settlement

         17  without first being reviewed by the Law Department?

         18                 MR. KLEINMAN: The Comptroller does,

         19  in the course of various reports that the

         20  Comptroller receives, the Comptroller does resolve

         21  some claims on its own, and we worked with the

         22  Comptroller's Office over the years to make sure

         23  that there is no overlap, in terms of the claims

         24  that they handle and we handle, and I guess I would

         25  agree that there is one tiny category where it does
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          2  make sense that the Comptroller's Office handles

          3  them, and the agreement between the Law Department

          4  and the Comptroller's Office so provides, and that

          5  is those cases where there is in fact a claim

          6  against the City and a claim on behalf of the City,

          7  in those cases we agree that there's no sense to

          8  duplicate the effort.

          9                 The Comptroller's Office for years

         10  has been handling those claims. I think that's an

         11  efficient method of handling those claims. But,

         12  again, that's a situation where looking at this in

         13  terms of efficiency terms, there you're having the

         14  least shuffling of papers and the least involvement

         15  of multiple agencies as possible.

         16                 In all the other situations what the

         17  Comptroller is suggesting will require paperwork

         18  inevitably going to an additional agency, and making

         19  the progress lengthier and more cumbersome and more

         20  expensive.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: About what

         22  percentage of the claims now go directly to the

         23  Comptroller's Office without going to the Law

         24  Department?

         25                 MR. KLEINMAN: Well, I can't answer
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          2  that in part because the Comptroller has not shared

          3  with my office exactly what they have and what they

          4  do. So, I would be delighted to look at the

          5  Comptroller's -- the number of claims, the kinds of

          6  claims, the result in those claims, but I don't have

          7  that information to give you any kind of analysis as

          8  to what the Comptroller is doing.

          9                 The Council might want to inquire of

         10  the Comptroller to get --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Did you ask for

         12  that data from the Comptroller?

         13                 MR. KLEINMAN: I did. I did just

         14  recently.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And what was

         16  their response?

         17                 MR. KLEINMAN: I got no answer after

         18  asking several times.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Why don't you

         20  testify to who you contacted in the Comptroller's

         21  Office and then --

         22                 MR. KLEINMAN I met most recently with

         23  Mr. Aaronson, who was sitting here, who introduced

         24  me to Ms. Taylor, the new Affirmative Claims person.

         25  And I asked Ms. Taylor on two occasions at the
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          2  conclusion of that meeting for information about

          3  what they were collecting and I received no

          4  information.

          5                 So, I think it behooves the Council

          6  to seek the information and detail, because the way,

          7  as Mr. Finkelman pointed out, the numbers, the way

          8  the numbers represented by the Comptroller provides

          9  no basis for comparison.

         10                 The question is not how much are you

         11  recovering on each claim, the question is how much

         12  is the potential value of each claim, you know, what

         13  kind of claim it is and how difficult it is to

         14  collect, is there an insurer or not, and then what

         15  percentage of the claim are you getting.

         16                 So, I think based on what we've heard

         17  today, there's really no way to analyze the numbers

         18  in any sophisticated way to be able to answer your

         19  question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, well, we'll

         21  ask the Comptroller to provide that data, and I

         22  would suggest that you speak to them, because

         23  they're in the back of the room, before you leave.

         24                 MR. KLEINMAN: L try talking to them

         25  all the time, and working collaboratively with them
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          2  all the time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          4  Avella.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Fidler did have to go to another meeting but he did

          7  want me to ask a question on his behalf.

          8                 Does the agency, the Law Department,

          9  use outside collection agencies, and for what

         10  purpose?

         11                 MR. KLEINMAN: The Law Department uses

         12  an outside collection law firm, which it has done

         13  maybe 15, 20 years now. The collection law firm

         14  generally receives all the smaller litigation

         15  matters which don't raise policy issues. If it

         16  raises a policy issue, it gets handled in-house, and

         17  it is a very efficient way to handle thousands of

         18  claims which would overwhelm the limited staff of

         19  affirmative litigation and it frees us to work on

         20  multi-million dollar claims and claims which raise

         21  policy issues. And the collection law firm has done

         22  that and has done that efficiently.

         23                 A fraction of what the collection law

         24  firm does includes the kinds of claims we're talking

         25  about here from the property damage claims, but it
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          2  handles a wide variety of claims arising from many

          3  different agencies on a very efficient

          4  cost-effective basis.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Is there one

          6  firm, or more than one firm?

          7                 MR. KLEINMAN: There is one firm.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What's the name

          9  of the firm?

         10                 MR. KLEINMAN: Leopold, Gross and

         11  Somers.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. And are

         13  they on a contract? Do they get a percentage of

         14  recovery? How do they get paid?

         15                 MR. KLEINMAN: They're on a contract

         16  with the Law Department, they get paid 15.33 percent

         17  of their actual collections, which if you look at

         18  the industry is an incredibly good rate.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, so if they

         20  don't collect, they don't get anything you're

         21  saying?

         22                 MR. KLEINMAN: That's right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If this bill

         24  takes effect and the role is transferred to the

         25  Comptroller's Office, in theory we could reduce the
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          2  hiring of this outside firm and the paying of the

          3  15.33 percent?

          4                 MR. KLEINMAN: No. Or only on the

          5  margins.

          6                 The Comptroller has no authority to

          7  litigate claims, and it's not a collection agency

          8  that we have a contract with, it's a collection law

          9  firm. And, so, these are claims, and while for

         10  everybody, including the Comptroller's Office, there

         11  are some claims which don't settle, and claims that

         12  don't settle, if you still want to pursue the claim,

         13  you have to do it through litigation.

         14                 So, whether Department of

         15  Transportation or DCAS, or the Comptroller, in the

         16  first instance attempt to settle a claim, if the

         17  claim doesn't settle, you will need the litigation

         18  back-up to assert that claim, so the need will be

         19  there regardless of who tries to settle the claim in

         20  the first instance.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         22  Avella.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I guess if I

         24  had to sum up your testimony, you're doing a great

         25  job and there's no need for this bill; am I correct?
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          2                 MR. KLEINMAN: I think we're doing a

          3  great job. I think there's always need for

          4  improvement. If there are claims which the

          5  Comptroller's Office thinks are not being pursued, I

          6  would love to hear about them and figure out a way

          7  to pursue them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, let me

          9  follow up on that.

         10                 Does any of the City agencies have

         11  records which indicate normal maintenance to City

         12  property, or property that's been damaged by the

         13  negligence of others?

         14                 I mean, when I came up with this

         15  bill, I asked the Independent Budget Office to do a

         16  review of the suggestion, and they contacted a

         17  number of the City agencies, and it's my

         18  understanding that none of the City agencies are

         19  keeping records, so we really have no way of telling

         20  are we doing a good job in collecting these fines?

         21  Because no one is going out there and saying, hey,

         22  you know, this parking meter was knocked over. Gee,

         23  this was knocked over because somebody hit it, as

         24  opposed to let's just get out there and fix it.

         25                 So, we really don't have a clue as to
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          2  the amount of property that's been damaged out there

          3  by the negligence of others, and thereby in effect

          4  you have no clue as to how much money could be

          5  recovered. And to say the agencies are doing a good

          6  job in this, I mean I don't think you're dealing in

          7  the real world, to be perfectly honest.

          8                 Because as I mentioned during the

          9  testimony with the Comptroller's Office, I've had

         10  City employees come up to me, who work in these

         11  agencies and tell me there is no mechanism

         12  whatsoever to go after this money. There is no

         13  mechanism whatsoever.

         14                 These are the people who are out

         15  there in the field each and every day, and I'm just

         16  aghast for you guys to come here and say that the

         17  system is great.

         18                 MR. FINKELMAN: Well, I can answer on

         19  behalf of DCAS, we keep meticulous records of all

         20  the repairs that are done to our fleet, and we also

         21  keep meticulous records as to every claim that's

         22  asserted against an insurance carrier. I don't know

         23  if you're hearing complaints about damage to City

         24  vehicles.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: In terms
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          2  of DOT property, again, we can only go after someone

          3  if there's an accident report. If somebody sees

          4  something, it never gets reported.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, do you

          6  have a program for that?

          7                 Because one of the things in this

          8  bill would create an incentive program for citizens

          9  to start recording this. You don't have that? Okay,

         10  well, at least that's an admission then.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: No. What I

         12  said, I don't believe the insurance company would

         13  pay the City, and the Law Department could help me

         14  on this, unless we had an accident report.

         15                 If you saw somebody knocking

         16  something down, that person doesn't report it, I'm

         17  not sure how we can go after them.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: You just

         19  admitted in effect there's no program, no procedure

         20  in place, for a citizen to call up and say I saw a

         21  parking meter knocked down.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD:

         23  Absolutely, we take those complaints all the time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: So you have a

         25  procedure. You said you didn't.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: No, that's

          3  not what I said.

          4                 What was you asked me, the question

          5  was whether we can claim the damages from a third

          6  party, okay? That's different from being notified

          7  from the citizen about something not working.

          8                 Okay, if a parking meter isn't

          9  working, or a street light is not working --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: That's not

         11  what I said.

         12                 A citizen sees a parking meter

         13  knocked down by a truck. The truck just goes away,

         14  keeps going; what do you do?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: We had

         16  CALLDOT, now we have 311, they can report that, and

         17  we can pursue it; however, if we have no insurance

         18  company, if they do not give us a license plate

         19  number --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: No, assuming

         21  they gave you the license plate number, let's assume

         22  that; if they have some explanation --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: An

         24  accident report has to be filed. An accident report

         25  has to be filed, okay? The truck company has to file
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          2  an accident report.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Well, why

          4  would the truck company who commits the accident

          5  file a report? They're just going to take off.

          6  They're not going to want to pay it.

          7                 See, you're missing the point. The

          8  point is there is no procedure. This bill would at

          9  least set up a procedure by which similar to the

         10  Sanitation Illegal Dumping Program, by which a

         11  citizen sees illegal dumping going on, they can fill

         12  out an affidavit, the City then goes out after the

         13  people who did the illegal dumping, and can issue a

         14  fine.

         15                 This bill would set up a similar

         16  procedure, by which a citizen can report damage,

         17  fill out an affidavit, and the City can then go

         18  after the company to recover those costs.

         19                 You don't have a procedure that does

         20  that. Admit it. Just admit it.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER FREUD: We have a

         22  procedure for citizens to notify us when property is

         23  damaged. We also have a process of going after

         24  people who damage property when we have accident

         25  reports. They are separate processes. That's the
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          2  answer to the question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Obviously we

          4  disagree.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          6                 I have no further questions for these

          7  witnesses.

          8                 MR. KLEINMAN: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If you can please

         10  see the Comptroller's Office before you leave so you

         11  can get that information that you had requested.

         12                 Okay, this hearing of the Finance

         13  Committee is now adjourned.

         14                 (Recess taken.)

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The City Council

         16  Finance Committee is back in session from recess. We

         17  will be voting on a preconsidered Intro that would

         18  increase the local portion of the sales tax on

         19  certain services by one-eighth of one percent. Under

         20  State law most of the City's local sales tax is

         21  imposed by the Municipal Assistance Corporation or

         22  MAC. However, sales on certain services, such as a

         23  beauty and fitness services, credit-related

         24  services, detective or protective services, and

         25  certain interior building maintenance services are
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          2  still locally imposed.

          3                 When the State Legislature adopted

          4  the City revenue package a few weeks ago, they

          5  provided that the only way the City would realize,

          6  could realize the one-eighth of a point increase on

          7  the MAC sales tax was if it adopted a local law

          8  raising these other City-controlled sales taxes from

          9  four to four and an eighth percent.

         10                 The local law before us today would

         11  raise these minor sales taxes, thereby triggering

         12  the state increase of the MAC sales tax, which

         13  covers most goods and services subject to sales tax

         14  in the City of New York.

         15                 We will now hear from the Office of

         16  Management and Budget on this request.

         17                 In the meantime, let me introduce my

         18  colleagues that are here. We have Council Member

         19  Mike McMahon from Staten Island, Council Member Mike

         20  Nelson from Brooklyn, Councilman Simcha Felder from

         21  Brooklyn, Councilman Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn,

         22  Council Member Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx,

         23  our Majority Leader Council Member Joel Rivera from

         24  the Bronx, our Minority Leader Council Member Jim

         25  Oddo from Staten Island, Council Member Helen Sears
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          2  from Queens, Council Member Margarita Lopez from

          3  Manhattan and Council Member Lew Fidler from

          4  Brooklyn. And I believe that's a quorum. Proceed.

          5                 Just identify your name and title for

          6  the record, please.

          7                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: My name is David

          8  Rubenstein. I'm City Director of the Office of

          9  Management and Budget.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do you have a

         11  statement, Mr. Rubenstein?

         12                 I'm really here to answer questions.

         13  As you know, this was part of the legislative

         14  package of relief for New York City, integral

         15  component of the $2.7 billion legislative package,

         16  which includes, among other things, a personal

         17  income tax surcharge.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. The

         19  administration is supporting this sales tax

         20  increase?

         21                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: Yes, we are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, and I

         23  understand we got a Message of Necessity from the

         24  Mayor earlier?

         25                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any members have

          3  any questions?

          4                 Council Member Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr.

          6  Rubenstein, by enacting the sales tax today, as

          7  opposed to, say, effective July 1st, how much

          8  revenue will the City realize?

          9                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: If we enacted it to

         10  be implemented July 1st, we'd lose about $10 million

         11  in revenue.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And do you

         13  have any notion how much it would cost the merchant

         14  to have to recalibrate his machines on two separate

         15  occasions to reflect first the state increase and

         16  then the City increase in sales tax?

         17                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: No, I don't have that

         18  data available, although for smaller retailers there

         19  are credits available to assist with administrating

         20  the sales tax.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: The credits

         22  would cover all the costs of recalibrating cash

         23  registers, scanners?

         24                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: Hopefully in these

         25  days of computerization the cost is minimal.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And we are

          3  here today considering a bill at the request of the

          4  Mayor; is that correct?

          5                 MR. RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any other

          8  questions?

          9                 Seeing none, I would like to call for

         10  a vote. Will the clerk read the roll. Call the roll,

         11  please.

         12                 MR. CARAS: Weprin.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

         14                 MR. CARAS: Provenzano.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         16                 MR. CARAS: Provenzano.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         18                 MR. CARAS: Nelson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         20                 MR. CARAS: Rivera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes.

         22                 MR. CARAS: DeBlasio.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Mr. Chair,

         24  may I be excused to very briefly explain my vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, you may.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          3                 Just to say, I know everyone at this

          4  table is not a fan as a general rule of sales tax,

          5  and I think there's a broad agreement that in

          6  general it is a regressive tax. We understood this

          7  was necessary part of a larger package to bring

          8  relief to New York City, and, again, I want to thank

          9  our Speaker for ensuring that the sales tax increase

         10  was as small as possible, and I vote aye.

         11                 MR. CARAS: Felder.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: May I be

         13  excused to explain my vote?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         16                 I abstain on this vote. I'm waiting

         17  for some information regarding this sales tax

         18  increase, and at this point that's the vote I'm

         19  making.

         20                 MR. CARAS: Fidler.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I agree

         22  completely with the comments that were made by

         23  Councilman DeBlasio, and I vote aye.

         24                 MR. CARAS: McMahon.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: May I have
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          2  leave to explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

          3                 I think certainly for those of us who

          4  are voting yes at this hearing, I just want to make

          5  it perfectly clear that although this is a vote on

          6  one item today, this is a vote for the entire state

          7  relief package being part of one deal that brings

          8  relief to the City of New York of $2.7 billion.

          9  Although we may have particular issues with

         10  different parts of this package, I know that my vote

         11  reflects not in any way anything but abhorrence of

         12  taxes, but recognition on my part that the City is

         13  in tough fiscal times, and we've made an agreement

         14  with Albany to help the people of the City of New

         15  York, and we also, I know I resolve to continue that

         16  fight for that elusive commuter tax, but that my

         17  vote today is not for this particular item, but for

         18  the full entire package that has presented to us by

         19  Albany as an entire deal, and so I vote yes.

         20                 MR. CARAS: Sears.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         22  explain my vote, please?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         25                 I will be voting yes on this, but I
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          2  think that it should be noted that in this very

          3  difficult time this City Council once again has

          4  taken a very bold step to help this City out of a

          5  very, very difficult crisis. And it's something that

          6  needs to be done, and I must say that I am very

          7  proud of my colleagues because they really have the

          8  courage to do the right thing. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: How do you vote?

         10                 Council Member Sears, how do you

         11  vote?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye.

         13                 MR. CARAS: Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: As the City of

         15  Woodbridge rejoices, I vote no.

         16                 MR. CARAS: Quinn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         18                 MR. CARAS: With a vote of ten in the

         19  affirmative, one in the negative and one abstention,

         20  the measure is adopted.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're going to

         22  leave the roll open for those members that are going

         23  to be coming up to vote.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)

         25
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